
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

February 5, 2025 
2:00 p.m. 

Hospital Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 
    

AGENDA 
 
 

 

 

Mission: Compassionate Care For Every Life We Touch 

Vision: To be our community’s trusted healthcare leader. 

I. Call to Order  Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Mission and Vision Barbara Sowada 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Barbara Sowada 

III. Minutes (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

A. January 8, 2025 Regular Meeting 

B. January 8, 2025 Special Meeting 

C. January 28, 2025 Special Meeting 

IV. Community Communication  Barbara Sowada 

V. Old Business Barbara Sowada 

A. Employee Health Plan (Still in progress – will bring in March)             Ann Marie Clevenger, Chief Nursing 

Officer 

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Barbara Sowada 

A. Employee Policies (For Review) Amber Fisk, Human Resources Director 

1. Access to Personnel File 

2. Dress Code 

B. CAH Policies Consent Agenda (For Action) Kari Quickenden, Chief Clinical Officer 

1. Parenteral Nutrition - TPN and PPN - Protocol (w/form # 800530) 

2. Pharmacy Controlled Drugs: Abuses and Losses, 15-12 (MM.01.01.03, EP 5) 

VII. Senior Leader Reports 

A. Chief Clinical Officer Kari Quickenden 

B. Chief Experience Officer Cindy Nelson 

C. Chief Financial Officer Tami Love 

D. Chief Nursing Officer Ann Marie Clevenger 

VIII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

IX. President of the Medical Staff Report Dr. Alicia Gray, Medical Staff Services Chief of Staff 

X.    Committee Reports 

A. Joint Conference Committee                                        Barbara Sowada 

B. Building & Grounds Committee               Craig Rood 

C. Compliance Committee        Kandi Pendleton 

D. Governance Committee Marty Kelsey 

1/181



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

February 5, 2025 
2:00 p.m. 

Hospital Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 
    

AGENDA 
 
 

 

 

Mission: Compassionate Care For Every Life We Touch 

Vision: To be our community’s trusted healthcare leader. 

E. Quality Committee Barbara Sowada 

F. Human Resources Committee                 Kandi Pendleton 

G. Finance & Audit Committee         Marty Kelsey 

1. Capital Expenditure Requests (For Action) 

2. Information Services Report  

3. Bad Debt (For Action) 

4. Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Information 

H. Foundation Board Craig Rood 

1. Ratify Foundation Board of Directors Member (For Action) 

I. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee  Barbara Sowada 

XI.  Contracts Suzan Campbell, In-House Counsel 

A. Consent Agenda (For Information, No Action Needed) 

1. Press Ganey Patient Safety Organization Participation and Confidentiality Agreement 

XII. Good of the Order            Barbara Sowada 

XIII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix))       Barbara Sowada 

XIV. Action Following Executive Session Barbara Sowada 

XV. Adjourn Barbara Sowada 

2/181



3/181



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

January 8, 2025 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on January 8, 

2025, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Dr. Sowada welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order.  

Dr. Sowada requested a roll call and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Judge Nena James, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Mr. Craig Rood, and Dr. Barbara 

Sowada.  

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Geoff 

Phillips, Legal Counsel; and Mr. Taylor Jones, Sweetwater Board of County Commissioners. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Dr. Sowada led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mission and Vision 

Mr. Rood read aloud the mission and vision statements. 

Mission Moment 

Dr. Sowada thanked the I.S. Department for their help with her new iPad. Ms. Deb Sutton, Marketing 

Director, said she recently filmed new advertisements with the help of over 30 willing, enthusiastic 

participants. Mr. Ron Cheese, Patient Financial Services Director, shared an experience involving a 

family member in the Emergency Department and thanked the ER Staff, Dr. Khadar, and the University 

of Utah staff for taking care of everything to make it a much better experience. He said the care received 

in our ER was amazing and it’s one of the best ER experiences he has ever had. Ms. Richardson said she 

was here visiting with a patient on New Year’s Day and the ICU patient was so complimentary of the 

care she received and of the doctors and nurses. The patient told Ms. Richardson she felt all were top-

notch. Ms. Richardson shared the patient’s feedback with the staff. She said she visited with her the 

following day and the patient couldn’t stop talking about her good experience. Ms. Richardson 

recognized the ICU staff for doing a great job.  

AGENDA 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Rood.  

Motion carried.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The motion to approve the minutes of the December 4, 2024, regular meeting as presented was made by 

Mr. Rood; second by Judge James. Motion carried. The motion to approve the minutes of the December 

23, 2024, special meeting as presented was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Rood. Mr. Kelsey 

abstained and the motion carried.  

4/181



 

 

Minutes of the January 8, 2025, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 of 6 

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Commissioner Jones said Commissioner Liaison duties will be appointed at the next meeting. He said 

he has requested to stay as the Hospital’s Liaison.   

 

OLD BUSINESS 

Medical Staff Bylaws 

The motion to approve the changes to the Medical Staff Bylaws as presented was made by Judge James; 

second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. 

 

Health Equity Plan 

 

The motion to approve the Health Equity Plan as presented was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge 

James. Motion carried.  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Employee Health Plan 

 

Dr. Ann Marie Clevenger, Chief Nursing Officer, said Ms. Nicole Burke is the Employee Health RN 

and is supervised by Ms. Patty O’Lexey, Education and Employee Health Director. Dr. Kari Quickenden, 

Chief Clinical Officer, said hazardous materials information is included in other plans. They said they 

will look at including links and references to other policies within this policy. Mr. Kelsey asked about 

the section related to volunteer costs being covered. Mr. Phillips suggested adding some definitions. The 

Plan will be brought back following revisions. 

 

SENIOR LEADER REPORTS 

 

Dr. Sowada thanked staff for the reports. Ms. Pendleton asked for an update on the nuclear medicine and 

fluoroscopy equipment updates in Dr. Quickenden’s report. Ms. Tracie Soller, Medical Imaging 

Director, provided an update. She said we can use a mobile C-arm but that has limitations. She said we 

are on hold for approximately five months of construction and won’t have fluoroscopy so limited to the 

C-arm. She said nuclear medicine patients are on-hold. Ms. Soller said GE was scheduled to have a 

service rep here that day but they did not arrive. There is a financial impact. The referral is to Utah. It is 

also difficult getting in for services in Utah. Ms. Soller said we are usually booked out up to two months. 

Salt Lake City can be booked out up to four months. Ms. Pendleton asked for an update on the Sexual 

Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) status. Dr. Clevenger said we are still orienting but have coverage now 

24/7. Ms. Pendleton gave a shout-out to the Emergency Department staff for the reduction in travel staff. 

Dr. Sowada asked about plans for CT. Dr. Quickenden said we are preparing a capital expenditure 

request to bring to the Board to provide another machine. Dr. Sowada stressed the importance of medical 

imaging for patients. Dr. Quickenden provided an overview of activity in that area and noted the 

importance of redundancy. Dr. Sowada asked about expansion into Farson. Dr. Clevenger provided 

additional information. She said we responded to a request from Farson. She said we provided services 

there in the past. We will have a Provider there one day a week with a Medical Assistant to provide 

services. She said it is a community service. Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, said the service 

will be similar to what we provide in Wamsutter. She said we charge them a flat fee for sending someone 

and we do not do the billing. Dr. Clevenger said Farson is really looking forward to that service again. 

5/181



 

 

Minutes of the January 8, 2025, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 of 6 

 

Ms. Love said we received a letter from CMS that we have a new billing number effective December 6, 

2024. She said we considered appealing to use that number back to October 1. We are waiting now for 

a rate letter from Noridian. Ms. Love said if we appeal, Noridian has up to 90 days to review. Ms. Love 

said we are going to bill everything from October 1 thru December 6 under the old billing number. We 

have investigated and made the decision to move forward. Ms. Love said there is a chance we will see 

some of that reimbursement by the end of the month. Approximately $18M has been held during that 

time frame. Ms. Love said we are confident it will go out clean because we had time for a second look. 

She said the average daily census is 10.7 and the average length of stay is 2.6. Surgeries were up again. 

She said respiratory season has really hit us. Ms. Pendleton noted the employee engagement survey is 

complete. A high-level overview will be provided to Committees. Dr. Sowada asked about the impact 

of the PEAK Leadership Training. Dr. Clevenger said her staff is really appreciative of the opportunity. 

She said we have seen some positive changes. Ms. Amber Fisk, Human Resources Director, said the 

training has been so good and she has noticed a difference, also. She said leaders are using the tools 

provided. Ms. Kayla Mannikko, Foundation Director, said she finished her final session earlier that day 

and has found it very useful. Leaders are held accountable to their different roles and responsibilities. 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson wished everyone a happy new year. She said she is starting her 40th year at the Hospital. 

She provided a report on strategic pillars. We continue working on the patient experience. We posted for 

a Patient Experience Director and will begin interviewing soon. Staff continues working on quality and 

safety improvements. The Patient Culture of Safety Survey is complete and results are under review. We 

had a goal in our community outreach and growth pillar to have an online Google rating of 2.3 and we 

have recently achieved a 4.1 rating. In the employee experience pillar, we completed a salary review and 

were able to provide a success sharing bonus. We have completed PEAK training and conducted an 

Employee Engagement Survey. We continue working on financial stewardship goals. Ms. Richardson 

thanked Ms. Mannikko and staff for the community Christmas event, also for the gifts provided at the 

holiday lunch and dinner. She thanked Unidine for the great food. Ms. Richardson said we met with 

Rock Springs Policy Chief Bill Erspamer to develop a plan to mitigate workplace violence and work 

together to keep our staff safe. Ms. Richardson said we are not filling the Chief Medical Officer position 

at this time or in the foreseeable future. She said Wyoming Hospital Association legislative meetings are 

being held in Cheyenne and they are having weekly calls. She hopes to attend some sessions in 

Cheyenne. The Rock Springs Boost Leadership Academy will tour our hospital January 24. A Master 

Plan Workshop is scheduled with the Board January 28. Ms. Richardson briefly reviewed Becker’s 

Hospital Review “10 Headwinds for Health Systems in 2025”: 

1) Continued staff shortages 

2) Financial pressures 

3) Federal administration 

4) Technology integration 

5) Medicare Advantage 

6) 340B program 

7) Supply chain 

8) Cyberthreats 

9) Access to care 

10) Private equity 

  

6/181



 

 

Minutes of the January 8, 2025, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 of 6 

 

Ms. Richardson announced the new Medical Staff Officers for 2025: 

 

Chief of Staff: Alicia Gray 

Vice Chief of Staff: Israel Stewart 

Secretary/Treasurer: David Liu 

 

Medicine Department Chairman:  Joshua Binks 

Vice Chairman: Rasheel Chowdhary 

 

Surgery Department Chairman:  Tony Pedri 

Vice Chairman: Benjamin Jensen 

 

Ms. Richardson invited everyone to attend the Red Tie Gala February 1. We will present at the Green 

River Chamber of Commerce on February 19. A group of leaders and Trustees plan to attend the 

American Hospital Association (AHA) Rural Health Care Conference in San Antonio in February. The 

AHA Annual Meeting is in Washington D.C. in May. The AHA Leadership Summit is in Nashville in 

July. Ms. Richardson thanked the staff, physicians, Board of Trustees, and County Commissioners for 

all they do for our community. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Buildings & Ground Committee 

 

Mr. Rood said the Committee had a robust discussion regarding the oncology suite project and said 

completion work continues.  

 

Governance Committee 

Mr. Kelsey said the Committee did not meet in December. They are scheduled to meet in January to 

discuss the policy on policies and review the Board Self-Evaluation. 

 

Quality Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said her notes are in the packet.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Ms. Pendleton said the wage and salary information was in the Committee meeting packet. She said we 

had moved meetings to quarterly but there is a lot of policy work happening so we are moving meetings 

back to monthly. 

 

Finance & Audit Committee 

 

Capital Expenditures: 

Mr. Kelsey asked Ms. Soller to review the two requests presented. Ms. Soller and Ms. Nicole Mann, 

PACS Manager, said the systems go together but the quotes are separate. The last system lasted 14 years. 

It will require about eight months to build. Ms. Mann said we have a good working relationship with the 

vendor. She said PACS (Picture Archiving and Communication System) has a huge impact on getting 

7/181



 

 

Minutes of the January 8, 2025, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 of 6 

 

information to providers and patients. Part of the build-out is to transfer historical information into the 

updated system. The motion to approve FY25-27 and 28 for $506,298 and $263, 418.75 as presented 

was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Judge James. Motion carried. Ms. Love said there is a third 

component on hardware for approximately $500,000. We hope to have that information to the Finance 

and Audit Committee for their next meeting.  

Ms. Love said all Clifton Larson Allen related policies and procedures are in review with departments 

and then will be rolled out to staff. Mr. Kelsey said the Committee did not meet in December. We 

essentially broke even for November. Mr. Kelsey said expenses are within the budget but are going up. 

He said we are keeping a close eye on it. He said contract FTE’s have jumped up. Ms. Pendleton said 

more details are included in the HR Committee meeting packet. Dr. Sowada said she thinks it would be 

good to share that information in both the HR Committee and Finance and Audit Committee.  

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the net bad debt and recoveries as presented of $2,106,212.93 was 

made by Mr. Kelsey, second by Judge James. Motion carried. 

Information Services Report: Mr. Kelsey said Information Services is a very important part of our 

organization. He asked Mr. Terry Thompson, I.S. Director, to provide a short report. Mr. Thompson 

introduced his staff and shared the results of the SWOT Analysis the group conducted. He said executive 

leadership of Ms. Richardson and Ms. Love is a strength. Staffing resources are the greatest weakness. 

He said they are extremely busy. HIPAA added 19 new requirements recently. Mr. Thompson said he is 

looking to add an additional FTE with the sole purpose of security. He said an opportunity is embracing 

AI to teach, coach, monitor. A threat is a successful cyber-attack. We had successes in 2024 of mitigating 

threats. We are currently working on a Windows 11 rollout. We completed data center redundancy. Mr. 

Thompson said there is never a dull moment in I.S. He thanked his engaged staff.  

 

Foundation Board 

 

Mr. Rood said there is a lot going on and thanked Ms. Mannikko for her nice report in the packet. Ms. 

Mannikko introduced Ms. Cory Darlington as the new Foundation Coordinator.  

 

CONTRACTS 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

There were no questions or comments. 

 

GOOD OF ORDER 

 

There were no comments. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session at 3:17 p.m. to discuss legal, personnel, and items considered 

confidential by law was made by Judge James; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried.  

 

  

8/181



 

 

Minutes of the January 8, 2025, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 of 6 

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 

 

The motion to leave the executive session and return to the regular session at 4:28 p.m. was made by 

Judge James; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Pursuant to the notice provided in the agenda, the Board of Trustees held discussions and action was 

taken.  

 

The motion to grant clinical privileges and appointments to the medical staff as discussed in executive 

session was made by Judge James; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations to the Board of Trustees for Granting Clinical Privileges 

and Granting Appointment to the Medical Staff from December 10, 2024 
1. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Shayna Wood, Pediatric Hospitalist 

 Dr. Barabara Divish, Pediatrics 

 Dr. Jack Tsao, Neurology 

2. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 year) 

 Dr. Aaron Blau, Emergency Medicine 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 year) 

 Dr. Razvan Ducu, Hospitalist 

 Dr. Weston Jones, Pediatric Dentistry 

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 year) 

 Dr. Vivek Reddy, Tele-Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Muhammad Chauhan, Tele-Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Lucy DeWitt, Tele-Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Edward Kimball, Tele-ICU (U of U) 

 Dr. Ravinder Sohal, Tele-Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Amy Federico, Tele-Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Nathan Blue, Maternal/Fetal Medicine (U of U) 

5. Modification of Privileges 

 Dr. Joshua Binks – Additional Privileges for radiation therapy to treat osteoarthritis 

 

The motion to approve contracts and authorize the CEO to sign as discussed in executive session was 

made by Judge James; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 4:33 p.m.  

  

  __________________________________ 

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

_________________________________ 

Judge Nena James, Secretary 

9/181



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

January 8, 2025 
 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met for dinner and a special 

meeting on January 8, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. at Boar’s Tusk Restaurant in Rock Springs, Wyoming, 

with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada called the meeting to order at 6:41 p.m.. She welcomed the Foundation Board of 

Directors and thanked everyone for participating and making it happen. The following Trustees 

were present: Judge Nena James, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Mr. Craig Rood, and Dr. Barbara Sowada. 

Not in attendance: Mr. Marty Kelsey. 

 

The following Foundation Board of Directors were present: Ms. Gina Harvey, Mr. Matt Jackman, 

Ms. Tiffany Kindel, Mr. Rick Lee, Dr. Joseph Oliver, Mr. Justin Spicer, and Mr. Dolan Wire. Not 

in attendance: Mr. Jim Jessen.  

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Ms. Kayla 

Mannikko, Foundation Executive Director. 

 

Guests: Ms. Cory Darlington, Foundation Coordinator; Ms. Cindy Nelson, Chief Experience 

Officer.  

 

BOARD PRESIDENT REMARKS 

 

Dr. Sowada invited everyone to share information about themselves and why they serve on their 

respective Board. The overall message shared by everyone is the desire to make a difference and 

give back to our community. Dr. Sowada stressed the need for both Boards. She said it takes a 

village to run a hospital and it takes absolutely everyone to make a community hospital work well. 

Dr. Sowada said she doesn’t think we look in the mirror often enough to see all we are doing. 

 

FOUNDATION PRESIDENT REMARKS 

 

Mr. Jackman thanked the Board of Trustees for the invitation to meet. He asked Ms. Mannikko to 

provide an update. Ms. Mannikko referenced the strategic plan. She said a lot has been done and 

we still have a lot to do. She said we are excited to build the donor base. Ms. Mannikko said we 

feel honored to be in this room together with everyone who chooses to be here. We are working to 

build new connections and want feedback on how to improve. 

 

HOSPITAL REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson said she has numerous clocks in her office and they symbolize the importance of 

time. The time spent by the Trustees and Board of Directors is priceless. She said we have a 

wonderful hospital. She thanked everyone for their time, commitment, and belief in the Hospital. 

She said we believe in what we are doing and we are completely committed to the Hospital. Ms. 

Richardson said we couldn’t do it without direction, guidance, and the help of our Board and the 

10/181



 

 

Minutes of the January 8, 2025 Board of Trustees Special Meeting 

Page 2 

Foundation Board. Ms. Richardson provided an update on our move to Critical Access Hospital 

status. She said we have been working on this for about two years. She said it is basically a different 

method of payment and is expected to be a large benefit to the Hospital. Ms. Richardson said she 

thinks this will secure us remaining our local hospital for years to come. She thanked everyone 

again and repeated the time given is priceless. 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 

There was no other business. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m.  

 

 

 

   

       

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

 

      

Judge Nena James, Secretary 

11/181



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL WORKSHOP 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

January 28, 2025 
 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met via Zoom in a special 

workshop on January 28, 2025, at 2:00 PM with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Dr. Sowada called the meeting to order. The following Trustees were present online: Judge Nena 

James; Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Mr. Craig Rood, and Dr. Barbara Sowada. 
 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial 

Officer; Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel; Mr. Taylor Jones, Sweetwater County Board of County 

Commissioners.  
 

Guests: Mr. Shawn Coyle and Mr. Tanner Draemel of PACT Studios. 
 

PACT STUDIOS PRESENTATION 
 

Ms. Richardson welcomed PACT and said it is exciting to see information they have been working 

on. She thanked the Board for allowing us to go through this master plan process. She thanked 

everyone for attending to see the exciting things in front of us. Ms. Richardson introduced Mr. 

Shawn Coyle, the Principal in Charge of the Strategic Master Plan. He said the Plan looks at what 

is here and where the organization wants to go. Mr. Coyle introduced Mr. Tanner Draemel who 

assisted in presenting the Plan. Mr. Coyle said the next steps will be to create a pathway for the 

priority projects over the next 5-10 years. Dr. Sowada said it is very well laid out and the 

information is very helpful. Ms. Richardson said the Senior Leaders have had a chance to review 

the information a couple of times and she said she appreciates the input from department leaders. 

She said we are looking at the priorities slide as where we need to start. She said we are growing 

our building fund. Ms. Love said it has been great working with PACT.  
 

MHSC PRIORITIZED PROJECTS UPDATE 
 

Ms. Love reviewed the current projects.  
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Ms. Richardson thanked PACT for the great presentation and for their time meeting with us. She 

said she is thankful to the Board for allowing us to do this exercise. Ms. Richardson thanked the 

team for being on the meeting and giving their input. She said she is grateful for the County’s 

support of the Hospital. Ms. Richardson thanked Dr. Sowada for calling this meeting. Dr. Sowada 

thanked everyone for their time that afternoon. There being no further business to discuss, the 

meeting adjourned at 3:33 PM.   

 

         

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

      

Judge Nena James, Secretary 

12/181



 
 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:2/5/2025  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 
Employee Policies – Access to Personnel File – First Read 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☒ Revision 

 ☐ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 
Language revisions (as shown). Has been reviewed by the HR Committee twice.  

 

 Board Committee Action: 

First read. 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☒ For Review Only 

 ☐ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ☐ In House Comments:Click or tap here to enter text. 

 ☐ Board  Comments:Click or tap here to enter text. 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
Do pass 

13/181



DRAFT

Status Draft PolicyStat ID 17347387 

Approved N/A 

Review Due N/A 

Document 
Area 

Employee 
Policies 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILE 

Purpose 
MHSC maintainsis committed to maintaining personnel records for eachin a manner that meets all 
federal and state laws and regulations. To that end, all personnel files will be maintained in the HR 
Department in either paper or electronic format. Access to personnel files is restricted to the employee 
and access to these personnel records is restricted to the employee to whom the files apply and those 
who are in the direct line of supervision of the employee. 
The Director of Human Resources is responsible for maintaining the confidentiality and security of 
personnel records. 

The Director of Human Resources is responsible for maintaining the confidentiality of personnel records. 

Policy 
I. Access to Personnel Files 

A. Employee files are maintained by the Human Resources (HR) department and are 
considered confidential. 

B. Directors and supervisors may only have access to personnel file information on a 
need-to-know basis. 

C. Employee medical and/or workers compensation information will be maintained in a 
separate, secure file. 

D. Personnel file access by current employees and former employees will generally be 
permitted within 10 days of a written request unless otherwise required under state 
law. Personnel files are to be reviewed in the Human Resources department. 

E. Employee files may not be taken outside the HR department. 

F. Representatives of government or law enforcement agencies, in the course of their 
duties, may be allowed access to file information. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILE. Retrieved 01/2025. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/17347387/. Copyright © 2025 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 2

14/181



DRAFT

Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Reviewed and Approved: 

HR Committee 

MHSC Board of Trustees 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILE. Retrieved 01/2025. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/17347387/. Copyright © 2025 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 2

15/181



 
 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:2/5/2025  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 
Employee Policies – Dress Code Policy – First Read 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☒ Revision 

 ☐ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 
Updated Dress Code after discussion and feedback from Leadership and 
Providers. Has been reviewed and revised in HR Committee several times. 
Recommendation for do pass.  

 

 Board Committee Action: 

First read. 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☒ For Review Only 

 ☐ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ☐ In House Comments:Click or tap here to enter text. 

 ☐ Board  Comments:Click or tap here to enter text. 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
Do pass 

16/181



17/181



18/181



19/181



20/181



21/181



22/181



COPY

Status Active PolicyStat ID 8996633 

Approved 03/2021 

Review Due 03/2024 

Document 
Area 

Clinical 

Parenteral Nutrition - TPN and PPN - Protocol (w/form # 
800530) 

PURPOSE 
The Pharmacy and Clinical Nutrition Departments shall be responsible for initiating and monitoring 
parenteral nutrition (PN) in adult patients when consulted by physicians. The pharmacist and dietitian 
will assist physicians in providing optimal nutrition therapy to patients unable to receive nutrition by the 
oral or enteral route. 

TEXT 
I. Parenteral Nutrition 

A. Nutrition Risk will be assessed using the NRS 2002 Nutrition Risk Screening tool. 

1. Low nutrition risk (NRS 2002 ≤3) – Total Parenteral Nutrition (TPN) will be 
withheld over the first 7 days if a patient cannot maintain adequate oral 
intake and early enteral nutrition (EN) is not feasible. 

2. High nutrition risk (NRS 2002 ≥5) or severely malnourished – TPN will be 
initiated as soon as possible when EN is not feasible. 

B. For all critically ill patients, use of supplemental TPN will be considered after 7-10 
days if unable to meet greater than 60% of energy and protein requirements by the 
enteral route alone. 

C. Peripheral parenteral nutrition (PPN) will not be available. Parenteral nutrition (PN) 
will always be administered through a central line. 

D. Commercial standardized TPN solutions will be used to reduce the risk of error and 
infection. 

E. Electrolytes may be added to the available commercial solutions. 

F. Intravenous lipids will be run separately as a piggy-back as long as the in-line filter 

Parenteral Nutrition - TPN and PPN - Protocol (w/form # 800530). Retrieved 01/2025. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8996633/. Copyright © 2025 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 4

23/181



COPY

appropriate for lipids is used. See Lippincott Procedures for Parenteral Nutrition 
Administration. 

II. Nursing will follow Lippincott Procedures for Parenteral Nutrition Administration when active 
orders for TPN are in place. 

A. TPN will be ordered daily by 1500. 

B. TPN will be hung daily at 1700 regardless of how much fluid is remaining in the bag 
of TPN that is hanging at 1700. 

III. Labs will be routinely drawn: 

A. Complete Blood Count (CBC) and Prothromin Time (PT) upon initiation of TPN and 
biweekly thereafter. 

B. Comprehensive Metabolic Panel (CMP), Magnesium, and Phosphorus upon initiation 
and daily thereafter. 

IV. Routine fingerstick blood glucose (FSBG) monitoring will occur every 6 hours for the first 72 
hours after initiation of TPN. 

A. Target blood glucose (BG) range of 140-180 mg/dL for general population 

B. Two or more elevated BG values (>180 mg/dL) will trigger initiation of MHSC Insulin 
Sliding Scale Protocol. 

V. Refeeding Syndrome – Shifts in fluid and electrolytes resulting from hormonal and metabolic 
changes that occur when artificial nutrition is initiated in malnourished patients. 

A. Complications include hypophosphatemia, hypokalemia, hypomagnesaemia, altered 
glucose metabolism, abnormal sodium and fluid balance, and vitamin deficiencies. 

B. Criteria for determining risk: 

1. Patient has one or more of the following 

a. Body mass index (BMI) less than 16 

b. Unintentional weight loss greater than 15% within the last 3-6 
months 

c. Little or no nutritional intake for more than 10 days 

d. Low levels of potassium, phosphorus, or magnesium prior to 
feeding 

2. Patient has two or more of the following: 

a. BMI less than 18.5 

b. Unintentional weight loss greater than 10% within the last 3-6 
months 

c. Little or no nutritional intake for more than 5 days 

d. A history of alcohol abuse or drugs including insulin, 

Parenteral Nutrition - TPN and PPN - Protocol (w/form # 800530). Retrieved 01/2025. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8996633/. Copyright © 2025 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 4

24/181



COPY

chemotherapy, antacids, or diuretics 

C. For patients identified at risk, slower advancement to goal rate is required: 

1. Initial bag to start at 25% of goal rate for first 24 hours, increase rate by 
25% and maintain for 24 hours as tolerated. 

2. Goal rate will be achieved on day 4. 

VI. Role of Dietitian: 

A. Assess nutrition risk using NRS 2002 Nutrition Risk Screening tool and other 
validated nutrition risk screening tools. 

B. Estimate energy requirements using a published predictive equation (eg, Harris-
Benedict, Mifflin St Jeor) or a simplistic weight-based equation (eg, 25-30 kcal/kg/d). 

C. Determine protein requirements using weight-based equations (eg, 1.2-2.0 g/kg/d). 

D. Communicate TPN recommendations to physician and pharmacist. 

E. Monitor labs, electrolytes, weight, input and output, and provide recommendations to 
physician and pharmacy for adjustments to TPN as needed. 

F. Assist with transition to oral or enteral nutrition as soon as medically appropriate. 

VII. Role of Pharmacist: 

A. Assess patient for appropriateness of TPN, nutrition risk, and energy requirements. 

B. Collaborate with physician and dietitian to develop TPN prescription. 

C. TPN will be ordered using standardized order set. 

D. Verify administration of drugs with TPN is safe, clinically appropriate, stable, and 
free from incompatibilities. 

E. Monitor labs, electrolytes, weight, input and output. 

F. When consulted for TPN management the Pharmacist may make adjustments to 
TPN as necessary and order labs deemed necessary to provide optimal 
management of TPN (eg, electrolytes, renal and hepatic function tests, serum 
glucose checks). 

REFERENCES 

Harvey SE, Parrott F, Harrison DA, Sadique MZ, Grieve RD, Canter RR, et. al. A multicentre randomised 
controlled trial comparing the clinical effectiveness of early nutritional support via the parenteral versus 
the enteral route in critically ill patients (CALORIES). Health Technol Assess. 2016; 20(28):1-144. 

McClave, S.A., Taylor, B.E., Martindale, R.G., Warren, M.M., Johnson, D.R., Braunschweig, C., … Compher, 
C. (2016). Guidelines for the Provision and Assessment of Nutrition Support Therapy in the Adult 
Critically Ill Patients: Society of Critical Care Medicine (SCCM) and American Society for Parenteral 
and Enteral Nutrition (A.S.P.E.N.). Journal of Parenteral and Enteral Nutrition, 40:2, 159-211. 

NICE. Nutrition support for adults: oral nutrition support, enteral tube feeding and parenteral nutrition. 
CG32. London: National Institute for Health and Care Excellence; 2006. 

Parenteral Nutrition - TPN and PPN - Protocol (w/form # 800530). Retrieved 01/2025. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8996633/. Copyright © 2025 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 4

25/181



COPY
Attachments 

  800530 - Adult Total Parenteral Nutrition Order Set 12.20R.pdf 

Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Nursing Standards Committee Ann Clevenger: CNO 03/2021 

Ann Clevenger: CNO 01/2021 

Olveira, G. et al. (2015, January). Hypoglycemia in non-critically ill patients receiving TPN. Nutrition, 
31(1):58-63. doi: 10.1016/j.nut.2014.04.023. Retrieved from https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/
25441588 

Seron-Arbeloa C, Zamora-Elson M, Labarta-Monzon L et al. Enteral nutrition in critical care. J Clin Med 
Res. 2013:5(1);1-11. 

Reviewed and Approved 

P&T Committee 12/17/2020 

MEC 12/22/2020 

Parenteral Nutrition - TPN and PPN - Protocol (w/form # 800530). Retrieved 01/2025. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8996633/. Copyright © 2025 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 4

26/181



COPY

Status Pending PolicyStat ID 15668310 

Approved N/A 

Review Due 2 years after 
approval 

Document 
Area 

Pharmacy 

Reg. 
Standards 

TJC 
MM.01.01.03 

Pharmacy:Controlled Drugs: Abuses and Losses, 15-12 
(MM.01.01.03, EP 5) 

Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

POLICY 
Abuses and losses of controlled substances must be reported, in accordance with federal and state 
laws, to the individual responsible for the pharmacy department and, to the corresponding senior 
leadership, and then to the Chief Executive Officer as appropriate. 

Losses include unresolved discrepancies from manual or automated systems. 

The Director of Pharmacy will contact Cardinal Health Director of Regulatory Compliance for regulation 
guidance. 

All controlled substances thefts and significant losses must be reported to the DEA within one business 
day via fax or letter. DEA 106 form must be completed and forwarded to the local DEA office within 60 
days.  Significant loss is defined by Wyoming Board of Pharmacy, or as pharmacy director considers 
significant. 

The Director of Pharmacy will meet state requirements (if any) for policies, reporting, or other 
documentation. 

A copy of the letter and electronic DEA 106 form will be printed prior to submitting to the DEA. The copy 
will be maintained with discrepancy records as required by state and federal record retention 
requirements. 

Pharmacy:Controlled Drugs: Abuses and Losses, 15-12 (MM.01.01.03, EP 5). Retrieved 01/2025. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15668310/. Copyright © 2025 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 2

27/181



COPY

Brendan Gemelli: Pharmacy 
Director 

Pending 

Pharmacy:Controlled Drugs: Abuses and Losses, 15-12 (MM.01.01.03, EP 5). Retrieved 01/2025. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15668310/. Copyright © 2025 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 2

28/181



 

MHSC Board of Trustees: February 2025 

Chief Clinical Officer (CCO) Report 

Report prepared and submitted by: Kari Quickenden, Pharm.D., MHSA 

1. As a follow-up to last month’s report, we received a letter from the manufacturer on 01/14/2025 releasing our 

nuclear medicine equipment after a safety recall.  Central Scheduling worked diligently to reschedule patients 

promptly upon receiving the release.  

2. On 01/29/2025, we received our Computed Tomography (CT) Accreditation Approval Report from the American 

College of Radiology (ACR).  The accreditation is for three years.  The ACR grants the accreditation when a 

facility has met all testing criteria established by the ACR Committee on CT Accreditation for clinical image 

quality and phantom image quality.  A phantom is a piece of equipment used to assist in image quality assurance.  

I would like to recognize Angie Overy, CT technologist, for taking the lead on submitting the images to the ACR.  

3. The Sweetwater Regional Cancer Center and Huntsman held their quarterly meeting at MHSC on 12/19/2024.  

The team reviewed patient satisfaction, oncology volumes, operational improvement projects, and clinical trials.  

We are grateful for the collaboration with Huntsman. 

4. The Sweetwater Regional Cancer Center is preparing to roll out website membership to the Center to Advance 

Palliative Care (CAPC) in the first week of February across MHSC.  The website has training modules on 

palliative care, pain management, holding difficult conversations with patients, care planning, and many other 

topics that may apply to departments.  MHSC will have access to the website and resources through 2025.  MHSC 

was awarded this membership through the American Cancer Society.   

5. The Sweetwater Regional Cancer Center received funding through a Wyoming Breast Cancer Initiative (WBCI) 

grant to provide survivorship classes for breast cancer survivors.  We have completed two.  The team completed 

the third class this week, and preparations are underway for the upcoming final class in the spring.  The classes 

are to assist in improving social support and encouraging creativity.  Additionally, the team is planning a special 

WCBI grant-funded survivorship night for our patients and families to improve psychosocial support and promote 

health and wellness.   

6. Medical Oncology saw a significant referral increase in the fourth quarter of 2024.  There were 45 referrals in the 

third quarter.  There were 73 referrals in the fourth quarter.  The increase in referrals continues into January 2025.   

7. Beginning 01/20/2025, the laboratory started the school district health fairs.  There are 15 different draw sites.  

Completing these events requires a strong collaborative effort with the Registration Staff, who will also be on-site 

at the draw site.  I want to extend a thank you to all of the staff who assist in providing these health fairs for our 

community.  

8. Thank you to Unidine and their staff for catering the Kari’s Access Awards event earlier in January.  The 

attendees greatly appreciated their creations.  Thank you to Chef Rob Adams and his team for their preparation 

for the event.  Chef Rob and his team are working hard preparing for the Red Tie Gala.  

9. I have been selected to join a newly formed American Hospital Association (AHA) work group.  It is the AHA’s 

Pharmacy and Drug Policy Work Group.  Ten pharmacy leaders from hospitals of all sizes and types from across 

the country comprise the work group.  The goal of the group will be four-fold: 

a. Identify pharmacy and drug policy issues in which the AHA should be engaged and help educate the 

AHA staff. 

b. Provide the AHA with advice and guidance on key critical pharmacy and drug policy issues to hospitals 

and the patients/communities they serve. 

c. Help facilitate and strengthen existing partnerships between the AHA and local, state, and national 

pharmacy groups. 

d. Help communicate the impact of these issues by promoting AHA research/reports, answering surveys, 

and participating in webinars, meetings, and conferences as needed. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kari Quickenden  

29/181



MHSC Board of Trustees: February 2025 

Chief Experience Officer (CXO) Report 

 

Irene continues working on the update to the organization chart. I will schedule appointments to shadow with leaders and 

staff in the departments I lead, as well as conduct SWOT analyses.    

1. Patient Experience Pillar 

A. Continue to utilize our person-centered care culture to improve the patient experience and improve the 

satisfaction for our patients. 
 

 

1) Objective: Provide compassionate care to every life we touch for every patient, every time, aligning with 

the mission, vision and values of MHSC.  

a) Measurement: “Degree to which all staff showed compassion” Improve HCAHPS score by 3 

percentage points per year. 

2) Objective: Improve patient experience and patient satisfaction scores.  

a) Measurement: Improve HCAHPS scores by 3 percentage points per year in the following measures: 

 Hospital Environment 

 Discharge Information 

 Care Transitions 

The final calendar year data is not compiled until after February 18, 2025, however, it appears we will not 

achieve our goals for year one of the strategic plan patient experience goals. With the exception of the 

Surgery Department, all areas where surveys are conducted decreased from their baseline measurement in 

CY23 in the compassion question. With an aggressive improvement goal, we must act with aggressive action 

plans. The nurse leaders have identified an improvement strategy focusing on active listening. We are rolling 

out a hospital-wide initiative with a focus on active listening for February-April. Action plan updates are 

underway for hospital environment, discharge information, and care transitions improvement efforts.  

I am pleased to announce Karali Plonsky began serving as MHSC’s Patient Experience Director effective 

January 27. Karali joined the Quality Department as a Quality Analyst in 2018. Soon after arriving, she 

found her niche and passion for patient experience and person-centered care. She says that assisting our 

organization in providing person-centered care is one way she can make a difference in the lives of 

coworkers, patients, their families, and our community members. Karali is a Planetree Workshops trainer, a 

Person-Centered Care Committee member since its inception, and participates in our Patient and Family 

Advisory Council. In 2024, Karali completed the Person-Centered Care Professional Certificate Program. 

She has served as a resident Press Ganey Expert and will continue to provide patient experience data and 

support/suggestions for ways to continually improve as she leads the Patient Experience Department. 

I attended physician meetings throughout the month to review patient experience data with the Providers 

and answer any questions they have regarding improvement.   

Patient & Family Advisory Council Partners: The Council  met in January and conducted a tour of the 

Medical Office Building. They provided insight on ways we can improve. We asked them to identify a 

department they felt passion for to help us create partnerships for co-design and we received great feedback. 

The next Council meeting is set for Monday, February 24, and the question for discussion is, “What does it 

look like/feel like when someone is really listening to you attentively, and how important is active listening in 

your healthcare journey?” We feel their feedback will help us with our hospital-wide compassion focus. 

 

We presented information on our Patient & Family Advisory Council at Young at Heart for their Lunch and 

Learn Program on Tuesday, January 28. 

 

B. Build the capacity of our Directors through a formal training program.  
 

30/181



Laura Lehan from PEAK Consulting said she met recently with Stacia and Nicole, our leadership trainers, to 

debrief the training program and talk through any feedback that may be helpful for our organization. She will 

work with us to discuss the training and how we may be able to accommodate additional leaders 

participating in the program.  

 

We are reviewing and updating the Patient Experience Toolkit “Back-To-Basics Toolkit to Cultivate MHSC’s 

Person-Centered Care Culture” document and scheduling touch-base meetings with all Leaders. We will 

include information from the PEAK training program.  
 

2. Employee Experience Pillar 

A. Improve employee retention and employee satisfaction for a happier, healthier staff. 

1) Objective: Weave our culture throughout HR and management practices to recruit, reward, and retain 

staff committed to carrying out our mission. 

a) Measurement: Reduce staff turnover by 10% per year, using the current turnover rate.  

b) Measurement: Improve our employee engagement scores by 3% per year. 
 

Turnover numbers were reviewed at the January HR Committee meeting. We had a rate of 18% for 

CY24 and we remain under the national average of 22-23%. 

 

The 2024 Employee Engagement Survey information was shared with Senior Leaders on January 2. 

An action plan will be developed with an update reported next month  
 

The Board of Trustees Self-Assessment Survey results from NRC and the two local questions were reviewed at the 

January 20 Governance Committee meeting. The information will be reviewed with the Board of Trustees.  

Four trustees are registered to participate in the American Hospital Association Rural Healthcare Conference February 

23-26 in San Antonio.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cindy Nelson  

31/181



MHSC Board of Trustees: February 2025 

Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Report 

Report prepared and submitted by:  Tami Love 

 

Financial summary - Revenue remained lower in December coming in at $23.8 million, under budget by $1.8 
million.    Expenses came in at lower than the previous month at $11.1 million, under budget.  Our bottom line 
for December is a gain of $386,729.  We are now through 6 months of the year with year-to-date gross revenue 
over budget by $2.9 million and expenses remain under budget by $1.4 million.   December inpatient volumes 
remained lower than expected and outpatient visits were at budget across most ancillary services.  Revenue 
is projected to be $24.5 million in January as inpatient volumes increased toward the end of the month.  Even 
with revenue coming in under budget and expenses close to budget, the estimated bottom line should be a 
slight gain for the month. 

In the December financial graphs, we added estimated ratios to show the improvements we would have 
made without the additional millions in accounts receivable from the held Medicare claims.   

 Days Cash on Hand – December 109 days, estimate 128 days 
 Gross AR – December 75.5 days, estimate 56 days 
 Cash collections – December 92.9%, estimate 110% 
 DNFB – December 34.3 days, estimate 5.9 days 

 
Critical Access.  We received a letter of approval from CMS on 01/02/2025 with an effective date of 12/6/24 
for the new Medicare billing number.  We decided to release the claims between 10/01 and 12/5 under our 
prior number due to the risk of an appeal taking another 90 days.  We released about $18 million Medicare 
claims in the week of January 6 and are waiting for those claims to be released for payment. We continue to 
wait for a notice from Noridian, our Medicare Administrative Contactor, with the letter of approval and rate 
letter which will indicate the cost to charge ratio for CAH Medicare reimbursement.  We continue to hold $14 
million in Medicare claims as of 12/6/24 until we receive that letter. Historically, Medicare monthly payments 
average $2.5 million per month which is impacting both cash collections and Days Cash on Hand. 

Construction.  We currently have several construction projects happening on campus.  We are starting to 
see steel go up in the Laboratory expansion project as they continue to pour foundations.  The Medical 
Imaging phase II project has started with completed demolition of the existing rooms.  The Oncology Suite 
project was inspected last week with an expected completion date in early February.  The MOB Front 
Entrance renovation will begin in the Spring as most of the work is exterior.  The Master Plan was presented to 
the Board of Trustees last week and as you can see, we have many decisions to make regarding next steps, 
potential relocations, and funding.  We continue to struggle with space and storage issues as our volumes 
and services grow. 

Security. We finalized a MOU with the Sweetwater County Sheriff’s Office (SO) for the deputization of our 
security guards.  They will need to go through a rigorous process to meet the requirements of the SO. We are 
also finalizing an agreement for instructor certification for de-escalation training.  CPI (Crisis Prevention 
Institute) will offer education to several key staff members who will then be certified instructors.  This will 
allow our staff to provide workplace violence prevention training to all staff, appropriate to how staff are 
expected to respond in a crisis situation.   

32/181



 

MHSC Board of Trustees: 2/2025 

Chief Nursing Officer (CNO) Report 

Report prepared and submitted by: Ann Marie Clevenger DNP, RN, NEA-BC 

Aligning with the strategic plan, initiatives have been implemented to meet the goals of MHSC. The 

following are ways the leaders and teams within my reporting structure have done this. 

1. Patient Experience 

a. Nursing Services have worked on efforts to improve patient experience that include a 

joined nursing services initiative in October of 2022, focusing on Press Ganey 

questions that aligned with courtesy and respect. The associated initiatives included 

behaviors related to MHSC values, as outlined in a Nursing Expectations Guideline. 

This project lasted for five quarters and demonstrated improved patient experience 

scores in most areas of nursing. Moving into 2024, nursing services focused on Press 

Ganey questions around the “nurses’ attitude towards requests and concerns.” Staff 

and leaders in departments were involved in creating initiatives and the PDSA cycle 

was being utilized to assess barriers and methods to overcome the barriers, including 

the addition of evidence-based initiatives. In 2025, nursing services focuses on the 

main strategic pillar of compassion and have aligned initial action items to begin this 

month.  

b. Holly Blau, Patient Educator, continues to participate in daily Multidisciplinary 

Rounding with patients, identifying patients that would benefit from additional 

education and provides resources as appropriate, enhancing the education provided 

prior to discharge. 

c. Care Management continues to follow up with patients after discharge to ensure that 

any questions, concerns, or identify concerns and mediate access to agreed upon 

plans of care.   

2. Quality and Safety 

a. Weekly meetings occur to discuss record review of the CMS Sepsis, Stroke, C diff. 

measures to identify any opportunities for improvement. There is active participation 

from a multidisciplinary group. 

b. Thank you for the opportunity to participate in TeamSTEPPS Master Training. It has 

been a valuable experience thus far in the training. Stephanie Mlinar, Kari 

Quickenden, and I look forward to learning more about the process and tools in 

improving communication and helping to assist Valerie Boggs with the education and 

operationalize the tools. Thank you to Valerie for the work in educating clinical 

teams! 

3. Community Services and Growth 

a. The Diabetes Self-Management Education (DSME) Program continues but has 

transitioned from the nursing educator at public health to our own Holly Blau, Patient 

Educator, receiving the referrals and providing the nursing education, alongside the 

dieticians at MHSC. Patty O’Lexey, Director of Education, has accepted the Quality 

Coordinator Role for the Program. Thank you to Kim Lionberger at Public 

Health/Community Nursing and their nursing team for a seamless transition of the 

program for our community. 

33/181



b. Thank you to Teresa Weyer, Chronic Care Management and Medicare Annual 

Wellness Visit Nurse for coordinating, participating, and sharing information on the 

care for the caregiver resources in our community and mental health educational 

opportunities, including the Prosper Program, a Governor Gordon initiative.  

4. Employee Experience 

a. Initiative to Reduce Turnover include but are not limited to the following, as there are 

individual departmental efforts for nursing and cardiopulmonary services. Some 

initiatives included an inaugural nursing and cardiopulmonary annual report to 

celebrate successes, continued director level leadership training for nursing services 

during monthly meetings, which have been a great adjunct to the Leadership Team 

Training we were fortunate to participate in, an Emergency Nurses Association 

specialized orientation plan for new nurses hired into the Emergency Department 

(ED) to adjunct with the Nursing Education Mini Orientation (NEMO Program), a 

Preceptor Education Program, ability and capacity to cross-train as it is proven to 

reduce turnover, implementation of senior leadership staff rounding, house 

supervisors 24/7, educational opportunities through the U of U education department 

that are free, and budgeting for staff education within departments. We currently have 

a total of 54 individual nurses that are cross trained in other areas than their primary 

unit.  

b. Educational opportunities are provided through the University of Utah (U of U) 

Education Department that we have access to with the affiliation between MHSC and 

the U of U. Other educational opportunities include a recent casting course and 

upcoming splinting course and a Trauma Nurse Core Curriculum (TNCC) course 

with 18 nurses signed up for the training with one signed up to become an instructor. 

An ICU Clinical Coordinator, Shayla McGregor, was recently a participant in 

training at the U of U, spending three days paired with ICU nurses. We are thankful 

for the opportunity the U of U provides.  

c. Education, through a collaboration of Human Resources and the Education 

Department, with special thanks to Jamie Webb, RN, has Annual Education aligned 

for individuals at MHS that will last from February 1st through March 31st. Patty 

O’Lexey, Director of Education is also planning our second annual “Skills Day Fair” 

presented by individual experts to the nursing teams at MHSC. 

5. Financial Stewardship 

a. At MHSC, nursing and cardiopulmonary services, within the CNOs leadership, make 

every effort to reduce travel staff, while maintaining appropriate staff to patient 

ratios, guided by national organizational evidence for the ratios. We also track the 

ratios on a shift by shift and change of census basis, weighing acuity levels and 

required resources for care. Teams always look to permanent staff to identify 

solutions, including participation in over time shifts to cover needs or the ability to 

shift an employee from one department to another if they are not needed in their 

primary unit and cross trained to the unit in need. 

Please let me know any additional insight you think may be helpful in this report. Thank you for your 

support for the teams at MHSC. 

Ann 

34/181



Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 
January 21, 2025 

 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on January 21, 2025, 

at 2:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Craig Rood, Trustee, Chairman 
Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee 
Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO  

          Mr. Gerry Johnston, Director of Facilities 
Mr. Steven Skorcz, Facilities Supervisor 
Mr. Will Wheatley, PlanOne Architects 
Ms. Michele Schmidt, PlanOne Architects 

 

Mr. Rood called the meeting to order once a quorum was established 

Ms. Irene shared a mission moment. 

Mr. Rood asked for a motion to approve the agenda. Mr. Kelsey made a motion to approve 
the agenda. Ms. Richardson seconded; the motion passed. 
 
Mr. Rood called for a motion to approve the minutes for the December meeting. Mr. Kelsey 
moved to approve the minutes. Mr. Johnston seconded; the motion passed. 

Maintenance Metrics 

Mr. Johnston reviewed the annual metrics for the year 2024. He showed the total of all work 
orders produced this year and the percentage of completion. Mr. Kelsey and Mr. Rood were 
satisfied with the completion percentage. Mr. Rood asked about periodic audit of work 
orders that may not have gotten closed. Mr. Johnston explained that some work orders are 
still on hold due to not being able to find flooring contractors to repair the floors. Mr. Rood 
complemented Mr. Johnston on the numbers. 

Old Business – Project Review 

Oncology Suite renovation 

Mr. Wheatley said there is confirmation of a date for Pat Davis from the State to be on site. 
Mr. Wheatley said the fire alarm was reinstalled and activated, and tests were sent to the 

35/181



state. The water purification test was done, waiting for results to be sent to the state. Test 
and balance were done, waiting for results for the state. They removed the fixed wall and 
put up a soft wall. All shaft lining and walls have been built for all floors. The projected sign-
off is January 30th. 

Medical Imaging Core and X-ray 

Mr. Johnston said all the equipment has been removed. Tom Trapp came in to prep for 
asbestos abatement, projected to be compketed on the 28th or 29th. Mr. Rood asked if Ms. 
Richardson had received any feedback from this project, she had not. Mr. Johnston showed 
the phasing map of the medical imaging project. Explained how work within the medical 
imaging halls will be done. 

Laboratory Expansion project - SLIB 

Mr. Johnston said steel and girders are up and prepped for the concrete pour. Mr. Johnston 
stated the floor pour could be next week or the following week depending on weather 
conditions. The pour of east side beams should be completed Thursday of next week.  

MOB Entrance – SLIB 

Mr. Rood asked if the MOB entrance was still on hold till spring. Mr. Johnston verified that it 
was on hold till spring. 

Master Plan 

Mr. Rood stated that the Master Plan workshop is scheduled for January 28th. Mr. Kelsey 
asked for a reminder to be sent to the Board. Ms. Richarson stated that she would have Ms. 
Nelson resend the notification. 

Tabled Projects 

Mr. Rood asked about tabled projects. No change in tabled projects. 

New Business 

No new business was brought forward. 

Mr. Rood stated the next meeting was February 18th. Meeting was adjourned at 1500. 

 

 

Submitted by Steven D. Skorcz Jr. 

36/181



Governance Committee Meeting 
20 January, 2025 
1:30 p.m.  
Attendance: Marty Kelsey, Chair; Kandi Pendleton, Member and Irene Richardson, 
Member; Geoff Phillips attended as legal counsel. 
 
Proposed New Policy 
“Policy for Development, Approval, and Oversight of Policies and Documents at 
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County.” 
Discussion took place regarding this policy. Decision was made to require these 
policies/documents be reviewed at least every three years or as required if 
sooner.  
Discussion took place regarding signature approval. It was decided to let Irene 
and staff determine how best to handle this. 
Geoff suggested that there may well be more parts of an existing policy (“Policies, 
Standards, Plans, Procedures/Processes, Guidelines and Forms Policy”) that 
should be incorporated into the proposed new policy. He will draft an updated 
proposed new policy for Committee consideration. 
 
Addition to Existing Policy 
Geoff suggested that a new paragraph be added to the existing policy (“CAH---
Plan of Care and Scope of Services”). The Committee agreed to support the 
addition of the new paragraph. This amendment to the existing policy will be 
forwarded to the Board at the same time as the proposed new policy referenced 
above is submitted. 
 
Addition & Changes to Existing Policy  
Geoff suggested an addition and some changes to existing policy (“BOT---
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Meeting Guidelines---Board of 
Trustees”) 
Members were asked to submit comments, suggestions for change, etc. to Marty. 
He will then work with Geoff to come up with recommendations for the 
Committee to consider. 
 
 
 
 

37/181



Annual Board Evaluation 
The Committee discussed the TGI survey and in-house survey. It was decided to 
ask Erin from TGI to be present via Zoom to go over the TGI survey results at the 
February meeting of the Board of Trustees. 
 
Adjournment 
There being no further business to come before the Committee, the meeting 
adjourned at 2:50 p.m. 

38/181



To: Board of Trustees 

From: Barbara J. Sowada  

Re: Quality Committee Meeting 

Date: January 15, 2024 

The Quality Committee met January 15 from 8:15 to 9:45 am by Zoom.  

 

Major discussion items were as follows: 

1. Hospital has joined Press Ganey’s Patient Safety Organization. Value of membership 

includes assistance in identifying and analyzing potential threats to quality and safety 

and assistance in reducing identified risks. This fits with the other Press Ganey services 

the hospital is using: HCAHPS survey and Culture of Safety and Employee Experience 

survey. 

2. Executive Summary of Strategic Plan Pillars for CY 2024 was discussed. Of the five Pillars-

-Patient Experience, Quality and Safety, Employee Experience, Community Services & 

Growth, and Financial Stewardship, the Patient Experience Pillar achieved the least of 

their goals. Executive Summary is also in the January F&A packet. 

3. Recalculation of control chart for sepsis bundle showed that hospital is meeting its goal. 

Analysis of sepsis outcomes for CY 23 and 24 showed fallouts had negligible effect on 

outcomes. 

4. Grievance complaints have been further categorized to include classification of concerns 

and severity of problem. 

5. Discussed possibility of going beyond TJC/CMS monitoring requirements to include 

measuring of third next available appointment and frequency of cancellations for clinics.  

6. Quality Committee charter discussed. Removed CMO and Clinical Director since these 

positions have been eliminated; added CXO and community member. No other changes 

were made. Will be brought to Board at its March meeting. 

Next Quality Committee meeting will be February 19th. 

 

39/181



 
 

Executive Update – MHSC Quality Committee of the Board 
PROVIDED BY Stephanie Mlinar, Kari Quickenden, Ann Clevenger, Tami Love, Irene Richardson, Cindy Nelson 

REPORTING DATE January 2025 Quality Committee Monthly Meeting  

General Highlights 

• Patient Safety Organization information presented 

• Interim Infection Preventionist presented updates 
 

Patient Experience Pillar 

FY 2025 Priorities and Goals: 

• Care Transition/Care Coordination (HCAHPS)*:   57.4 percentage points by end of CY 2024, stretch goal 58%  
(re-evaluate goals in Jan ’25)   Baseline data: CY 2023 - 54.41% 
 

• Discharge information (HCAHPS)*:   89.25 percentage points by end of CY 2024, stretch goal 90%  
      (re-evaluate goals in Jan ’25)           Baseline data:  CY 2023 – 86.25% 

Additional Strategic Objectives: 
 

• Degree to which all staff showed compassion (HCAHPS)* 
o Baseline data CY 2023 

OB Baseline data 81.40% percentage points                 MS/ICU Baseline data 70.59% percentage points  
Surgery Baseline Data 91.03% percentage points                MOB Clinics Baseline Data 80.18% percentage pt.  
College Drive Clinics Baseline Data 82.36% percentage points         ED Baseline Data 70.19% percentage points 

Radiation & Medical Oncology are not surveyed through Press Ganey 
 

• Hospital Environment (HCAHPS)* 
o Cleanliness sub measurement:  Baseline MHSC data (CY 2023): 74.54% 
o Quietness sub measurement:    Baseline MHSC data (CY 2023):  64.02% 

 
Strategic Initiatives: 

• Formal leader training program  

• Dedication of one Senior Leadership meeting per month for implementation and management of 3-year strategic plan 

 
Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Care Transition/Care 
Coordination 

  Re-evaluate goals in January 2025 

Discharge Information:  
Improvement achieved in this 
measure with the calendar 
year goal nearly met. 

  Re-evaluate goals in January 2025 

Compassion:  
Nurse leaders selected Press 
Ganey survey initiatives to 
work on throughout 2024. OB, 
MS and MOB clinics saw 
improvement in the initiative 
measures with the calendar 
year goals nearly met. 

  Re-evaluate goals in January 2025 
 
Emphasis on hospital-wide focus and 
initiatives 

Hospital Environment – 
Cleanliness:  Adjustments in 
scheduling with dedicated staff 
for MS/ICU Day and evening 
shifts and added SDS/OB 
evening shift 
PFAC rounded and provided 
feedback 
 

  Re-evaluate goals in January 2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40/181



 
 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Hospital Environment – 
Quietness: Doors that could be 
adjusted for loudness have 
been fixed.  Earplugs and eye 
masks are available for patient 
use. Quiet conversations at 
nurse’s stations are encouraged 

  Continue to monitor through Leader 
rounding on patients. 
 
Re-evaluate goals in January 2025 

Formal leader training:   
Three of four sessions 
completed. One virtual session 
remains in early January. 

Joint Commission’s 
arrival in November 
pushed trainings back 
to January 

Positively received by 
leadership team 

After January’s training, this goal will 
be met. 

Dedication of one Senior 
Leader meeting per month for 
Strategic Plan 

None identified 
 

 Scheduled on final week of each 
month in 2025. 

 

Employee Experience Pillar 

Strategic Objectives:  

• Reduce staff turnover by 10% per year, using the current turnover rate 

o Baseline/target:  Target Goal of 9.9% (a 10% reduction) in the staff turnover rate from June 2024 to the end of 

the calendar year 2024, using the current turnover rate as of June 2024 (Using a baseline of 11%, 11 x .10= 

1.1; 11 - 1.1= 9.9)   

• Improve our employee engagement scores by 3% per year 

Initiatives: 

• Hire a consultant to evaluate and review salaries at a minimum of every three years 

• Comprehensive program for directors to develop relationships, etc. 

• Develop plan for success sharing bonus for employees if goals are reached 

 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Reduce Staff turnover by 10% 
per year, using current 
turnover rate (Amber). 
Meetings have occurred and 
include discussion on the 
travel staff and recruit and 
retention 
measurements/initiatives in 
financial stewardship 

None identified  The plan continues to be 
documented in the tracking system. 
Additional goal to remain under 
national staff turnover rate (YTD 
22.7%) 
HR and Nursing have action plans in 
place to reduce turnover. 

Employee Engagement Survey 
scheduled for this fall 

The goal lists that it 
will improve by 3% per 
year. The last survey 
was 2022. 

A new survey vendor is 
being used this year to 
combine the timing with 
the Culture of Safety 
Survey. Calculating a 
percentage increase may 
prove difficult because of 
two different companies. 

October 7, 2024, began the survey 
window and will run for 3 weeks 
 
Historically, the Culture of Safety 
Survey is done every 2 years. We 
will be able to look at engagement 
scores in 2026 if we keep the 
current schedule and vendor. 

Salaries were reviewed with 
adjustments made at the 
beginning of FY 2025 

   

Comprehensive program for 
Directors (also listed under 
patient experience pillar) 

  In progress 

Success sharing bonus 
implemented at the end of 
June 2024 

   

41/181



 
 

 

Quality & Safety Pillar 

FY 2025 Priorities and Strategic Objectives: 

• C. Diff:  No more than one reportable case from 4/1/2024 to 3/31/2025 (re-evaluate goals in April ’25) 

o Baseline data:  January 2024 – May 2024: 4 cases 

• SEP-1 Bundle Compliance:  70% compliance by 6/30/2025, stretch goal 75% (re-evaluate in Jan ’25) 

o Baseline data:  MHSC current data: Calendar year January-May 2024: 72.58% 

• OP23 -Stroke measure:  70% compliance by end of CY 2024, stretch goal 80% (re-evaluate in Jan ’25) 

o Baseline data:  MHSC rate (July 2024 Hospital Compare Report): 67% 

Initiatives: 

• Create process improvement position that will require Lean training and be responsible for leading improvement efforts 

• Create patient and staff education 

• 100% of clinical staff will complete TeamSTEPPS training by the end of three years 

• In-house legal counsel will provide a “risk management minute” quarterly each year and provide a recording for all staff 

• Develop method that will allow Synergi to categorize reports and create ability to track and trend data 

• Utilize Health Equity Plan to promote the highest quality outcomes and safest care for all people 

 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

 
C. Diff: 
BioFire testing is available with 
reflex testing.   
Meeting goal 
 

None identified Interdisciplinary review 
resulted in improved 
process. 

Continued monitoring. 

 
Sep-1 Bundle Compliance: 
Meeting goal 
 

  Continue weekly OFIs with timely 
feedback to team members. 

 
OP 23 – Stroke Measure: 
Meeting and exceeding goal 
 

  Re-evaluate target and stretch goals in 
December. 

 
Process Improvement position:  
Budget reviewed for this FTE 

Budget for FY 25 does 
not have this FTE in 
place 

Quality Department 
Director and team 
continue process 
improvement work 

Will budget for FTE for FY 2026. 
Will develop job description and 
competencies. 

 
Create Staff and Patient 
Education:  Staff education – 
Prosper training held for 
evidence-based research 
regarding suicide prevention 
offered by community agency 
 
Patient education – educator 
hired, meeting goal 
 

None identified  Staff:  Reviewing and updating annual 
education courses 
 
Patient: 
Reviewing health literacy tools. 
Shadowing at U of U with unit 
Educator. Evaluating educational tools 
for patients to include in FY 2026. 

 
Initiative regarding 
TeamSTEPPS. Attendance 
Tracking is in place and the 
activities are open to clinical 
and non-clinical staff.   Current 
clinical staff 79% completion 
 

None identified Improve inter-and 
intradepartmental 
communication 

Three sessions for each of the three 
levels are available for staff to sign up 
each month. 
Monthly report sent to leadership with 
updates on compliance. 

42/181



 
 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Risk management minutes are 
being presented at medical 
staff meetings. 

None identified Provide education for 
staff, including employed 
medical staff 

Plan to upload risk management 
minutes to process improvement case 
in Synergi 

Synergi report categorization 
with further development for 
HIPAA, grievance/complaint, 
and process improvements 

None identified Further case 
categorization increases 
tracking and trending 
capabilities 

 

Health Equity: AHA HETA 
assessment completed. 
Tailored MHSC’s HE plans and 
charter to match resources and 
strategic goals. 

None identified   

 

Regulatory Readiness 

• Departmental rounding continues with collaboration between the Quality Department, Safety Officer and Infection 

Preventionist 

Community, Services and Growth Pillar 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Improve and establish outreach to community and outlying areas  

(Baseline data unavailable, goals are being set by each team) 

o Community education 

o Diabetes Education 

o Care for the caregiver 

o Mental health 

• Improve from a Google 2-star Rating to a Google 3-star rating by the end of three years 
 
 

Initiatives: 

• Utilize master plan to identify areas where we can provide outreach to outlying areas 

• Develop a strategic communication/marketing plan 

• Increase number of community presentations 

 

Accomplishments 
 

Issues Impact Action Plan 

Community Education goal is 
to have a total of 7 
presentations in 2024   
Goal met 
 
 
 
Radiation Oncology is working 
with in-house translators to 
provide Spanish documents in 
the education binder for new 
patients. 
 

Scheduling can 
sometimes be difficult. 
Some departments are 
not as comfortable 
with public speaking. 
 
 
Documents from 
outside entities are 
not in Spanish 

None identified at this 
time 
 
 
 
 
 
 
None identified at this 
time 

Working with School District #1 to 
set up Lunch & Learns. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43/181



 
 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Diabetes Education: Diabetic 
Self-Management Education 
(DSME) site change from 
Public Health to MHSC. There 
were five referrals in the first 
week upon the transition 
from Public Health to MHSC. 

None identified at this 
time 

RN patient educator 
performs the nurse visit, 
and the Director of 
Education is the DSME 
Quality Coordinator. 
Medical Nutrition 
Therapy (MNT) continues 
through MHSC 
Dieticians. Potential 
impact to increase 
appointments as the RN 
patient educator meets 
with patients while 
hospitalized.  

MHSC Education Director and Pt 
Educator continues to improve 
processes in referrals, 
documentation, and the billing 
process. Next steps include 
awareness of the program with 
providers at MHSC and in our 
community. 

Care for the Caregiver: 
Care for the Caregiver team 
members will 
attend/participate/present at 
2 public events to meet the 
community members we 
serve, network with other 
service providers, and build 
relationships in our 
community in 2024.  Goal 
exceeded for CY 2024 with 3 
events attended. 
 

None identified None identified 2025: Care for the Caregiver team 
members will attend/ participate/ 
present at 4 public events  
MHSC will have an employee train 
and be the SWC 211 Ambassador. 
Caregivers need to know the 
services and providers available to 
them in our county and state.  
The employees of MHSC are the 
largest group of caregivers in our 
county and planning is in place for 
providing support. 
 

Mental Health: starting 
January 8, 2025, QLER will be 
providing 8 hours of service a 
week to our patients, 
increasing access to MH 
services offered in our county. 

New clinic leadership 
needs to meet with 
appropriate team 
members to develop 
plan for CY 2025 

None identified Meetings with interdisciplinary 
teams and leadership have been 
held and continue as a plan is 
developed for short term and long 
term ideas. 

Improve Google Star Rating 
Meeting and exceeding the 
goal 

None identified   

Utilize Master Plan:  no 
update at this time, planning 
in progress 
 

   

Marketing plan is focusing on 
nutrition and sharing our 
successes, on target to meet 
goal 

None identified   

Chronic Care Management is 
working toward increasing 
Medicare annual wellness 
visits. Goal is exceeded as of 
12/4/2024. 

None identified   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

44/181



 
 

Financial Stewardship Pillar 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Improve revenue cycle using CliftonLarsenAllen recommendations 
o Improve Days of Cash on Hand by 10% each year for three years  FY25 = 119, FY26 = 131, FY27 = 144 
o Reduce and maintain Days in A/R to 45 days by the end of 2024  CY 24 Jan-Jul Average 63 days 
o Maintain level of claims denials at state and national benchmarks (target goal <15% by end of FY 2025) 

CY 24 Apr-June 24.7% 
o Reduce and maintain Days Not Final Billed (DNFB) at five days by the end of 2024  

CY 24 Jan-Aug Average 10.1 days 
 

• Build the MHSC County Maintenance Fund to $2,000,000 by the end of three years 
7/1/2024 $500,000 rolled over 

• Build and maintain the building fund to the amount of depreciation expense by the end of three years 
6/30/2024 $7,000,000 

• Decrease the number of Nursing and Respiratory Therapy travel staff by 30%, per year for three years 
Goal for CY 2024 is a combined RN/RT travel staff of 11.9 using a baseline CY 2023 of 17 total RN/RT travel staff 
Additional goal contract staff expenditure total less in total for CY 2024 compared to CY2023 

 
Initiatives: 

• Work with the County Commissioners to set annual budget to achieve $2,000,000 goal over three-year strategic plan 

and still allow for adequate funds in annual budget for routine maintenance 

• Supplement the building fund from monthly, quarterly, or annual contributions from cash flow from operations to 

achieve the total amount of depreciation expense by the end of three-year strategic plan 

• Nursing leadership will work with Human Resources to recruit and retain permanent staff and reduce travel staff by 

30% per year 

 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Improve days of cash on hand Conversion to Critical 
Access – need new 
Medicare billing # 

Altering current amount 
of days of cash on hand 

 

Reduce and maintain Days in A/R Conversion to Critical 
Access – need new 
Medicare billing # 

Altering current amount 
of days in AR 

 

Maintain level of claims denials None identified   

Reduce and maintain Days Not 
Final Billed:  DNFB split into HIM 
and PFS cases 

Conversion to Critical 
Access – need new 
Medicare billing # 

  

Build the MHSC County 
Maintenance Fund:   County Fund 
process still being discussed 

   

Build and maintain the building 
fund 

Conversion to Critical 

Access billing held 

since Oct. 1 

  

Decrease the number of Nursing 
and Respiratory Therapy travel 
staff: 
RT staff have decreased. RN travel 
staff at baseline  

RN travel staff being 
hired for MedSurg to 
increase inpatient 
census capability over 
the busier winter 
months 

 CNO and HR Director actively working 
on plan. 
A meeting was held with 
interdisciplinary teams discussing the 
relationship between recruitment and 
retention and travel staff. Discussed 
action items. 

Alignment of individual 
departmental performance 
improvement projects (PIPS) has 
identified two additional areas for 
financial stewardship. 

None identified   Surgical Services – working on endo 
room turnover times, nearing goal 
Patient Navigation – working on a self-
pay project, meeting goal 

 

45/181



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting Minutes - Draft 
Monday – January 20, 2025 
Zoom 
 
Trustee Members Present by Zoom: Kandi Pendleton, Nena James 
Voting Members Present by Zoom: Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson, Suzan Campbell 
Non-Voting Members Absent: Tami Love, Kari Quickenden 
Non-Voting Members & Guests Present by Zoom: Ann Marie Clevenger, Stephanie Mlinar, Amy Lucy, 
Shawn Bazzanella, Ruthann Wolfe, Eddie Boggs, Cindy Nelson 
 
 
Kandi called the meeting to order and welcomed everyone.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The motion to move the report from Stephanie Mlinar to the beginning of the meeting was made by 
Amber; second by Nena. Motion carried.  
 
STAFFING ADEQUACY REPORT & CY2-24 – QUALITY OF THE BOARD UPDATE ON STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
Stephanie reviewed the executive update with data from the Quality Committee per Barbara Sowada’s 
request. She said the update with data is provided quarterly. Stephanie said we won’t be able to finalize 
the calendar year numbers until the end of February. She said the Performance Improvement and 
Patient Safety (PIPS) projects information is also included. Stephanie reviewed the staffing adequacy 
information. Questions directors were asked to complete in Synergi were included. The Committee 
thanked Stephanie for her report. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

The motion to approve the December 16, 2024, meeting minutes as presented was made by Nena, 
second by Amber. Motion carried.    
 
ROUTINE REPORTS 
 

Turnover 
 

Amber reviewed CY24 data. She said our turnover rate is at 18%, which is below the national average. 
She reported we currently have 593 people employed.  
 
Open Positions  
 
Amy reported on open positions and said the total in three categories is 45. She said some of those open 
positions have received offers. Kandi asked if long-time openings are ever re-evaluated. She asked if we 
are doing without or filling with travel staff.  Irene said we would add this for discussion at the next 
Position Control Team (PCT) meeting.  
 
Contract Staffing 
 
Amy reviewed the contract staffing information. Suzan asked for clarification of the terms “perm” and 
“open”. Amber said they will work to clarify the columns language to make it clearer to people outside 
their department.  
 

46/181



 

Minutes of the January 20, 2025 Human Resources Committee 
Page 2 

OLD BUSINESS 
 
Employee Policies – Dress Code Policy 
 
Kandi said the policy is better than previous drafts and said we may identify some other things as we 
move forward. The motion to take the Dress Code Policy to the full Board for review as presented was 
made by Amber; second by Nena. Motion carried.  
 
Employee Health Policy - Employee Health Plan 
 
There will be revisions to the draft policy and it remains under review.   
 
Employee Policies – Access To Personnel File 
 
The motion to take the Access To Personnel File Policy to the full Board for review with one spelling 
correction as discussed was made by Nena; second by Irene. Motion carried.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Employee Policies – Table of Contents 
 
Suzan said she and Amber met to review and decide which policies need to be reviewed and possibly 
updated. More information will be coming in future meetings. 
 
Employee Policies – Equal Employment Opportunity, ADA and Commitment to Diversity 
 
Suzen said we will table this one at this time. She will send out information for the next meeting 
showing how three policies were moved into one.   
 
NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting is scheduled Monday, March 17 at 3:00 p.m.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:35 p.m. 

47/181



Separator Page

FY25 29

48/181



49/181



50/181



51/181



52/181



53/181



54/181



55/181



56/181



57/181



Separator Page

FY25 32

58/181



59/181



60/181



61/181



62/181



63/181



64/181



65/181



66/181



67/181



68/181



69/181



70/181



71/181



72/181



73/181



74/181



75/181



76/181



77/181



78/181



79/181



80/181



81/181



82/181



83/181



84/181



85/181



86/181



87/181



88/181



Separator Page

FY25 35

89/181



90/181



91/181



92/181



93/181



94/181



95/181



96/181



97/181



98/181



99/181



100/181



101/181



102/181



103/181



104/181



105/181



106/181



107/181



108/181



109/181



110/181



111/181



112/181



113/181



114/181



115/181



116/181



117/181



118/181



119/181



120/181



121/181



122/181



 

 MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 

January 29, 2025 
 

 

Voting Members Present:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee – Chairman 

     Ms. Craig Rood, Trustee 

     Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO      

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Ms. Jan Layne, Controller 

 

Non-Voting Members Present: Ms. Angel Bennett, Director of Materials 

Mr. Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services 

Dr. Ann Marie Clevenger, CNO 

Dr. Kari Quickenden, CCO 

Mr. Terry Thompson, Director of IT 

 

Guests:    Ms. Carrie Canestorp, Director of HIM 

     Ms. Cindy Nelson, CXO 

     Ms. Tracie Soller, Medical Imaging Director 

     Ms. Deb Sutton, Marketing Director 

Mr. Taylor Jones, County Commissioner 

     

               

     Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order via teleconference at 2:00 PM. He welcomed everyone 

and noted Commissioner Jones was in attendance. 

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Sutton shared a positive comment that was posted online.  

 

Approve Agenda 

 

A motion to approve the agenda was made by Mr. Rood; second by Ms. Richardson. Motion 

carried.  
 

Approve Meeting Minutes 
 

A motion to approve the meeting minutes from November 26, 2024, was made by Mr. Rood; 

second by Ms. Love. Motion carried.  Mr. Kelsey reminded the group the Committee did not 

meet in December so there are no minutes from that month. 

 

Capital Requests FY25 

 

FY25-29 

 

Mr. Thompson provided information on the request. Ms. Love reviewed why it was not budgeted. 

The motion to approve Capital Request FY25-29 for the PACS Network Infrastructure Project for 

$442,349.89 as presented was made by Mr. Rood; second by Ms. Richardson. Motion carried.  

123/181



 

 

Minutes of the January 29, 2025, Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 2 

 

FY25-32 

 

Ms. Sutton reviewed the request. She said the current company would not sign a Business 

Associate Agreement (BAA) which is needed between HIPAA-covered entities and businesses to 

ensure complete protection of Protected Health Information (PHI). The Foundation will also be 

included in the website instead of having a separate site. The request was budgeted. The motion 

to approve Capital Request FY25-32 for the Website Redesign and Migration to New Site for 

$52,992 as presented with the understanding Ms. Suzan Campbell, In-House Counsel, would sign 

off on the final agreement was made by Mr. Rood; second by Ms. Richardson. Motion carried.  

 

FY25-35 

 

Ms. Soller and Dr. Quickenden reviewed the request. Ms. Love said there will be construction 

costs associated with the equipment and we will look at adding those into the lease. The request 

was budgeted. The motion to approve FY25-35 for the Siemens Symbia Pro Spectra Lease for 

$880,000 as presented was made by Mr. Rood; second by Ms. Richardson. Motion carried.   

 

Mr. Kelsey asked Ms. Love to review the capital budget. She said, following these items, we 

should have approximately $200,000 remaining. She said we may be coming to ask for an 

amendment to the capital budget for the year. Ms. Love said we are waiting to see what will 

happen with critical access financials. 

 

Financial Report 

 

Ms. Love reviewed the narrative highlights, critical access update, and financial goals 

information in the meeting packet. Mr. Cheese reviewed the self-pay report information. Mr. 

Cheese reported the preliminary bad debt amount is $1,984,199.28.  

 

Old Business 

 

CLA Project – Financial goals 

 

Ms. Love said the final report is included in the meeting packet. She said we will create a 

monthly update moving forward. Mr. Rood said it would be nice to see in six months looking at 

the baseline of the project and making a comparison with where we initially thought we would 

be. Ms. Love said she will develop a report.  

 

Outsourcing Aging AR 

 

Mr. Cheese provided an update. He said we signed a contract and spent the last two days training 

five of the company’s personnel. He said we will be working on the accounts by the end of the 

current week. Ms. Love said we are using the FTE model. She said we should start seeing an 

impact in the commercial payer area. 

 

124/181



 

 

Minutes of the January 29, 2025, Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 3 

Self-Pay Financing Options 

 

Mr. Cheese provided an update and a brief overview. He said we are very excited about this 

project. Mr. Cheese said we will begin sending out an extra page of our statements to talk about 

this new option. A QR code will be included for people to go directly to a site to set things up 

and make a payment. 

 

     New Business 

 

Strategic Plan Executive Update CY2024 

 

Ms. Love said Dr. Barbara Sowada requested that this information be brought to the Committee 

to ensure all Trustees see it. 

 

Financial Forum Discussion 

 

Ms. Love said she received e-mails from Dr. Sowada with requests for some reports. Ms. Love 

asked the Committee for feedback on changes for future packets. Mr. Kelsey said we will discuss 

it at the February meeting.  

 

The Committee Charter will be reviewed at the February meeting. 

 

Next Meeting 

 

Due to travel schedules, the next meeting was moved to Thursday or Friday, February 27 or 28. 

An invitation to a meeting will be sent out.  

 

Mr. Kelsey thanked everyone for attending.    

 

Meeting adjourned at 3:05 PM. 

 
 

 

 

 

Submitted by Cindy Nelson 

125/181



126/181



127/181



128/181



129/181



130/181



131/181



132/181



133/181



134/181



135/181



136/181



137/181



138/181



139/181



140/181



141/181



142/181



143/181



144/181



145/181



146/181



147/181



148/181



149/181



150/181



151/181



152/181



153/181



154/181



155/181



156/181



157/181



158/181



159/181



160/181



161/181



162/181



163/181



164/181



165/181



166/181



167/181



168/181



169/181



170/181



171/181



172/181



173/181



174/181



175/181



176/181



177/181



178/181



179/181



180/181



181/181


	Agenda - February 5, 2025 Mtg
	January 8, 2025 Regular Meeting
	January 8, 2025 Special Meeting
	January 28, 2025 Special Meeting
	Orientation Memo Template - Access to Personnel File 2025 Amber Fisk
	Employee Policies Access to Personnel File First Read (with corrected spelling)
	Orientation Memo Template - Dress Code Policy 2025 Amber Fisk
	Employee Policies Dress Code Policy First Read
	Parenteral Nutrition - TPN and PPN - Protocol (w_form # 800530)
	Pharmacy Controlled Drugs_ Abuses and Losses, 15-12 (MM.01.01.03, EP 5)
	Chief Clinical Officer
	Chief Experience Officer
	Chief Financial Officer
	Chief Nursing Officer
	Building & Grounds Committee
	Governance Committee
	Quality Chair Report Jan 25 Barbara Sowada
	Quality Executive Summary January 2025
	Human Resources Committee
	FY25 29
	FY25 32
	FY25 35
	Information Services Report
	NARRATIVE FOR FEBRUARY 2025 MEETING
	Finance and Audit Comm Minutes January 29 2025 Draft
	F&A 1 for Feb 2025
	F&A 2 for Feb 2025
	F&A 3 for feb 2025
	Press Ganey Patient Safety Organization Participation and Confidentiality Agreement

